Dedham School Building Rehabilitation Committee

Hosted at the Dedham Town Hall and via Zoom

Tuesday March 25, 2024 - 6:30 PM

Members present:

SBRC Meeting Minutes

(A= attended Meeting; P= attended partial meeting)

Voting Members:

Jonathan Levi Associates
(Designer):

Anthony Rodriguez, Ex Officio

A | John Tocci, Chair Jonathan Levi Kaitlyn DeStefano, Ex Officio Via
Zoom
A | Steve Bilafer, Vice Chair A| Philip Gray Via Zoom Shannan Kavanagh, Ex Officio
A | Josh Donati, Selectman A| Carol Harris Kerri Bryant, Ex Officio
A | John Heffernan, Finance Other: Dr. lan Kelley, Deputy
Committee Superintendent
A | Mayanne MacDonald Briggs, A| Matt Haffner, Director of
School Committee Facilities, Via Zoom
A | Stephen Acosta, School A| Kimberly Hermesch, Oakdale
Committee School Principal
A | Phillip Gonzalez A| Ms. Nan Murphy, Superintendent
of Schools (non-voting)
VERTEX: Owners Project Jennifer McGowan, Greenlodge
Manager (OPM) School Principal
A | Jon Lemieux, Project Director Via | A| Katherine Duceman, Ex Officio
Zoom
Stephen Theran, Sr. Project A| Steven Popper, Ex Officio
Manager
A | Anissa Ellis, Project Manager Sara Rosenthal, Ex Officio

Distribution: SRBC Members and other attendees

1. Old Business/Approval of Minutes:

Mr. Tocci opened the March 25, 2024, SBRC meeting at 6:33 pm.
Mr. Tocci asked for any old business. There is none.

Mr. Tocci requested approval of the minutes from the March 5, 2024, meeting.

MOTION: by Mr. Gonzalez to approve the March 5, 2024, minutes.

SECOND: by Ms. MacDonald Briggs
Vote: Vote is unanimous. Motion passes 6-0-1; Mr. Heffernan abstains.

Mr. Tocci noted there was one change to the minutes, he requested one update to page 2 it should say
665 instead of 660 for the combined Oakdale Greenlodge enrollment. He then requested a revote.

MOTION: by Mr. Donati to approve the March 5, 2024, minutes with noted changes.
SECOND: by Ms. MacDonald Briggs
Vote: Vote is unanimous. Motion passes 6-0-1; Mr. Heffernan abstains.

SBRC Meeting Minutes — March 25, 2024




2. Approval of Invoices:

Mr. Tocci requested approval of the vendor invoice package for February 2024. Mr. Tocci asked about
the invoice for the Cropper GIS work and if that is going to be paid by the project and not the schools.
Ms. Ellis confirmed.

MOTION: by Mr. Bilafer to approve the February 2024 Package.
SECOND: by Mr. Heffernan
Vote: Vote is unanimous. Motion passes 7-0-0;

3. Report on Communications with MSBA regarding enrollment options and certification:

Ms. MacDonald Briggs stated that last Wednesday the school committee voted 6-0 in favor of a 360
enrollment standalone Oakdale school.

Mr. Tocci requested an update on the possible timelines as we move forward.

Ms. Ellis stated we had talked about providing a PSR in May and Schematic Design Report in August
which leads to an MSBA schematic design approval in October.

Mr. Tocci stated in order to get to an MSBA Board meeting we need to submit approximately two

months in advance.

Ms. Ellis stated that the report is due at the end of August and the Board meeting is approximately
October 25, 2024.

Mr. Tocci stated we do not have to go as far as back as the PDP but we are submitting a new PSR in May.
Mr. Gonzalez asked if we can make these deliverables in a more compressed time frame?

Mr. Tocci confirmed. He stated because we don’t have to submit a PDP, it is a compressed timeframe.
The PSR needs to be submitted by May 2, 2024, to make it to the MSBA Board meeting at the end of
June.

Ms. Harris stated the PSR is the Preferred Schematic Report. Previously at this phase we had already
eliminated many of the sites, but we still had the three school sites. So, we will be looking at the three
different enrollment configurations on those sites. She stated we will be redoing those studies and
looking at the massing for an add/reno and new construction and because there is already a site and
enrollment chosen we can also put together a floor plan and site plan for that chosen option.

Mr. Tocci stated it does seem odd that enrollment has been selected but we have to show the MSBA
that we considered other options and sites.

Mr. Donati asked why that is?

Ms. Ellis stated it’s because the MSBA gave us the three different enrollments and they want to see that
all options were considered. This is part of their process.

Mr. Donati stated he’s sure that is true, but the last time when we did this, the enrollment vote was
already made and we didn’t still pursue studying the enrollments that were not chosen. Since we
already voted, why do we have to do this.

Mr. Tocci stated when we submitted the PSR last summer we had done the analysis of the different sites
and we had done site designs and preliminary cost estimates that went into the PSR. Now we are doing
this backward and the MSBA is aware this is a unique situation. But they want to see that there were
documents created for all options, that all the options were studied, as part of the report.

Mr. Heffernan stated we have that information in the PSR under the old PSR, so is a lot of that
information the same.

SBRC Meeting Minutes — March 25, 2024



Ms. Harris stated in many ways yes, but in other ways there is a lot of work that has to go into it. She
noted we have to create new space summaries which she is working on right now. So, it will change the
amount of square footage required for each option, we are trying to get it just right so all the documents
reflect the enrollments we are dealing with right now.

Mr. Gonzalez stated the program that was in the original PSR was comprehensive, does that have to get
significantly revised?

Ms. Harris stated it will be very similar, but the number of rooms will be adjusted to appropriately match
the enrollments.

Mr. Donati stated tonight we will be talking about cost and what we need to ask from Town Meeting to
continue with the feasibility study and expedite the new school design. So, whatever we are doing to
expedite this report and reconsider options that are already off the table, is that taking away from cost
and time that we could be focusing on finalizing the actual design? How much money and time is being
spent on what is, quite literally, an exercise. Discussing the other enrollment options seems strange.
Mr. Heffernan stated we’ve heard we need to do that as a requirement of the MSBA, hopefully we can
minimize time spent on the other enrollment options. He stated it is important for us to have discussed
this because he doesn’t want anyone to think we are still considering those options.

Mr. Gonzalez stated that we are only looking at Oakdale and the Capen site because it’s a standalone
option. We couldn’t possibly site something at the Greenlodge or Oakdale.

Mr. Tocci stated we could, but it does not make any sense. Conceivably, we could open it up to other
sites.

Mr. Tocci stated the goal is to get the annual fall town meeting, so the latest MSBA approval is the
October 30, 2024, meeting and then we worked backwards from there. He noted that it will be a tight
timeline, if the MSBA votes on October 30, we have the town election a week later, and then town
meeting a couple of weeks after that. The vote isn’t on the agenda for tonight, but the goal to have all
the votes in the Fall.

Mr. Donati asked if we are able to say there is a target date for opening the new school? This seems like
a 6-month delay in the town meeting votes, will this be a February opening?

Ms. Ellis stated that we should have that information by next meeting. Once we have finalized the size of
the building, we can finish putting a schedule together.

Mr. Acosta asked if there is any chance we could have Schematic Design approved at the August 28,
2024 meeting?

Ms. Ellis stated we cannot do that because we cannot attend back-to-back MSBA meetings.

Mr. Donati asked if we have asked the MSBA and confirmed we cannot attend back-to-back meetings.
Ms. Ellis confirmed.

Mr. Tocci asked when we have to have our ask ready for Fincom?

Mr. Heffernan stated we have to look to see how much information we can have ready for Fincom April
8, 2024. That is for the discussion on the warrant for additional funds to complete the design. Hopefully
tonight we can have a conversation about how much additional money we will need to finish the design
work.

Mr. Tocci stated there have been conversations, but we do not have final numbers yet from JLA or
Vertex. There is ongoing discussion.

SBRC Meeting Minutes — March 25, 2024



Mr. Heffernan stated we will need those for the April 8, 2024, Fincom meeting. He stated there have
been times when the number has been delayed to later hearings, however they are moving fairly quickly
so the more information we can give them the easier it is for them to move into deliberations to make a
recommendation. He stated he asked the chair to get him any questions ahead of time if possible.

Mr. Tocci noted it is a warrant article submitted by School Committee, he confirmed the next SC
meeting is April 3. He asked for confirmation that the new number will be ready for that meeting even if
it’s not ready for the SBRC ahead of the Fincom meeting.

Ms. MacDonald Briggs stated the SBRC does not need to vote on the warrant article. It is nicer to say
that both committees voted on it and are in agreement, but not necessary.

Mr. Donati stated we can have the conversation at the April 9, 2024 meeting which is before town
meeting.

Mr. Lemieux stated we should have the number tomorrow for everyone to review.

Ms. MacDonald Briggs stated she wants to thank the MSBA for allowing us to move head as quickly as
possible.

Ms. Murphy thanked Principal McGowan and her staff at the Greenlodge for their time and efforts in
getting us to where we are this time. All their feedback and input will continue to inform the process as
we move forward. She stated the school committee will continue to ensure the Riverdale and
Greenlodge school have a thoughtful plan on when they can expect to see changes to their schools
moving forward.

Mr. Tocci stated JLA met with approximately 50-60 teachers back in the fall and those communications
will certainly still be used and inform the design and construction of the school.

Ms. Murphy stated not just teachers but also custodial staff, nurses, and food services.

4. Consideration and possible vote on location of the new school:

Mr. Tocci stated it seems to him to make sense to site this new school at the Oakdale site. He stated he
is open to hearing other ideas or thoughts, but the Oakdale site has already been tested and had borings
completed. It was approved for Geothermal the first time we voted on this project. He stated we have
put a lot of thought into what it would be like to build a school on the occupied site. He stated those are
some pros to building at the Oakdale, it would also allow the design to move forward more quickly.

Ms. MacDonald Briggs stated we have put a significant amount of work into studying the Oakdale site
already. She has heard people say they want us to look at an add/reno or building where the current
building is already sited. She stated it would irresponsible and wasteful to consider other sites since we
have already done borings and studies on the Oakdale Site. She stated she is not in favor of doing that.
She is also concerned with moving the existing Oakdale to a different neighborhood.

Mr. Heffernan stated as one who voted for Capen, he would not consider it again. It was the best choice
for consolidating two schools into one location, but to move the single school out of Oakdale makes no
sense. He stated he is prepared to make a vote tonight.

Mr. Donati stated keeping the school at the Oakdale site is the most cost effective and efficient thing to
do. He stated we would be ignoring all the public input we received if we moved the schools out of their
current neighborhoods. No one has been advocating for the Oakdale to be moved to another site. The
only issue at the Oakdale is the bad soil, but if you balance that with costs for doing an entirely new
public process and reviewing new sites, it doesn’t make a ton of sense. If we had endless resources and

SBRC Meeting Minutes — March 25, 2024



time we could do that, but that’s the not the case here. For the purpose of a school, it will be a good
site.

Mr. Gonzalez stated he agrees with what has already been said. He stated we also got pretty far through
the process previously and discussed the complexity of building on an occupied site. We know it is
possible and can be managed. He stated it is important to remember we are not overlooking that fact
we are building next to a school that is open and in session. The other reason is the equity
consideration, when we looked at the Oakdale site, we agreed the Oakdale site will better help achieve
that equity.

Mr. Bilafer stated that things changed when the MSBA gave us new enrollment figures, so it is certainly
appropriate to retrace our steps, however we don’t have to do it at the same pace as before. Many of
the considerations from the original decision still hold true. That includes the site and new construction
on that site. Changing the enrollment to a standalone 360 school doesn’t make renovating a 100-year-
old school any cheaper. He stated the committee is now mindful that ultimately, we will be asking the
community for three new elementary schools over the next few years and we need to be mindful of
cost. What the MSBA is asking us to do is to give them a PSR that shows all potential options given the
new enrollment figures. We have spent a lot of time talking about these things so if we take tonight to
refresh our memories that is appropriate but there is nothing that will lead me to believe this school
should be anywhere other than the Oakdale site with new construction.

Ms. Hermesch stated she agrees. The first time around we really looked at renovating the existing
Oakdale school and what we were really talking about is preserving the shell. Economically it does not
make sense and there needs to be a consideration of cost. As a school we are prepared to move forward
with the new construction on the site as discussed before, she does not see the revisiting the
conversation about renovation being a realistic option.

Mr. Tocci asked Ms. Hermesch if she is ok with building a new school on the current site.

Ms. Hermesch confirmed. She stated that considering efficiency and costs she understands why that
needs to be the option.

Mr. Acosta stated he agrees with what Mr. Heffernan said. He voted for the Capen site because it was a
good way to merge the Greenlodge and Oakdale neighborhoods into one. However, now that it is a
standalone school it does not make sense. Based on what we heard tonight it makes sense to move
forward with the Oakdale site.

Mr. Rodriguez stated he agrees with everyone that the Oakdale site makes the most sense. One of the
big things to note is that it is the most cost effective option. The smaller enroliment alleviates the site
from being overcrowded and reduces the amount of required parking which helps allow for larger play
areas and everything fits more comfortably on the site. In the end we all want a successful project that
the community can appreciate. As we go through the process again we can be very mindful of the
neighborhood context so all the residents can buy into the new project.

Mr. Tocci stated we have already done a traffic study that looked at a new school being built at the
Oakdale. He noted there are a lot of stakeholders who have been involved with the design. He stated
they have met with the Active Transportation Working Group, the Town Engineer, and the Town DPW
Director and they are already thinking about improvements to the area streets and sidewalks. Many

SBRC Meeting Minutes — March 25, 2024



people have provided input and feedback on the site. He stated he also thinks it will be less costly for
JLA and Vertex to get us to schematic design if we can tell them tonight the building will be at the
Oakdale school and that may make the additional funding ask at town meeting more manageable.

MOTION: by Ms. Macdonald Briggs to move forward with the Oakdale 360 standalone to be
constructed at the Oakdale site.

SECOND: by Mr. Heffernan.

Vote: Vote is unanimous. Motion passes 7-0-0;

5. Feasibility Study Cost:
Mr. Tocci stated we do not have the budget for the feasibility study yet, we should have it in a few days
and in time for the School Committee will vote next week.
Mr. Donati stated it has been said that as a result of the decision making it will cost extra money and
some people have called it “wasted money.” However, he wants to revisit how everything played out
and review the timeline. He stated the SBRC voted on the enroliment and site last June. We then
received new enrollment numbers in November that showed we were looking at a possible 665-student
enrollment to combine those two communities. And so, we would have had a choice to make at that
point.
He stated Capen was a smaller site but many people supported it because it was between two
neighborhoods. There was a question if the Capen site could handle the original 550 student enrollment.
And so, whether we had changed our minds in June or July or if we changed course in December, we
would still have been faced with higher current enrollment numbers in November which led to us asking
the MSBA if they could revisit the enrollments offered. To which they responded yes and hugely
increased our enrollment. The point being, we would have been at this point regardless. It is easy to say
all this time has gone by and been wasted, but we just mentioned a lot of things that happened over the
last 5-6 months that is not wasted. We know we can do geothermal at this site, we know that if a 550
student is going to fit a 360 student will fit. We've also done a traffic study. None of that has been
wasted time.
Mr. Donati stated that there would have been a conversation in November about enroliments that
would have brought us to this same point. He stated a 235 enrollment was never an option so we are
here today because we asked questions about the enrollment, received great enrollments back from the
MSBA, and now we have a standalone school with state money which was not really an option before.
He hopes that if town meeting members have questions about the money that will be asked for at town
meeting, that they should ask them now and we can walk through the last 6 months of decision making.
Mr. Bilafer stated the fact that we did a few months of site consideration in 15 minutes should tell you
how much work the committee has already done. He stated that all the work that was done before can
inform the decision being made with the new enrollments.
Mr. Bilafer asked if the work being done now is still being done under the original appropriation because
we have some funds left over.
Mr. Lemieux confirmed, he stated we have approximately $81,000 which will be applied against any
future ask of town meeting.
Mr. Bilafer stated, just to reiterate that, the funds that were given to this committee were used wisely
and they were well within the limits to get the job down. Now we will be asking for the funds to make
any required alternations to meet the new numbers given y the MSBA.
Mr. Lemieux stated the MSBA is still considering if they would participate in reimbursement for the
additional ask. They recognize that we are in a unique position and were within days of submitting the

6

SBRC Meeting Minutes — March 25, 2024



SD, but they want to know what the number is first, but there is a possibility they will increase their
reimbursement. He noted the reimbursement rate is 47%.

Mr. Lemieux stated there are not caps for feasibility so it’s straightforward. He noted that if we hadn’t
spent the remaining $81,000 they would reimburse 47% of everything spent. The unanswered question
is if they will reimburse for anything over the original $1 million appropriation from the MSBA.

Mr. Donati stated we are going to asking for somewhere in the hundreds of thousand, nowhere close to
Simillion. We are looking at getting close to $20 million overall from the state, so whatever money we
are going to ask for at town meeting is well worth it.

Mr. Tocci asked when we will know from the MSBA what portion of this may fund? Or do they have to
see the PSR first? It would be helpful to know how much of the new ask the MSBA will be willing to fund.
Mr. Lemieux stated if we can provide the request for added funding, we can let the MSBA know at the
same time and ask that they make a decision before the May town meeting.

6. Future Meeting Discussion:
Mr. Tocci suggested they also switch the working group meetings to the opposite weeks.
**Discussion on meeting dates**
Agreed upon upcoming meeting dates:
Wednesday April 3, 2024 — School Committee Meeting
Monday April 8, 2024 — Fincom meeting
Tuesday April 9, 2024 — SBRC Meeting
Tuesday April 16, 2024 — Fincom Deliberations (possibly Thursday April 18, 2024 as well)
Monday April 29, 2024 - SBRC Meeting
*Thursday May 2, 2024 - PSR SUBMISSION DUE*
Monday May 14, 2024 — SBRC Meeting
Tuesday April 2, 2024 — Working Group
Thursday April 25, 2024— Working Group
Tuesday May 7, 2024 — Working Group

7. New Business & Public comment:
Mr. Tocci asked for any new business. There is none.

Mr. Tocci asked for any public comment.

Mr. Czazasty asked if there can be a debt exclusion vote on the November national ballot and then a
town meeting vote soon after?

Mr. Tocci stated we can have a debt exclusion vote on the election ballot, but not an override vote. We
will have a more definitive answer when we have a meeting with the Town Clerk. He also noted we will
have 120 days to get approval from town meeting and a town wide vote after the MSBA approval. He
stated we will talk with the town clerk and moderator about timelines.

Mr. Donati stated he hopes we can all work together as a community because time is money so we hope
that the votes can happen as quickly as possible so construction can start as soon as possible.

8. Adjournment:
Mr. Tocci requested a motion to adjourn.

MOTION: to adjourn by Mr. Acosta
SECOND: by Mr. Gonzalez
Vote to Adjourn - Unanimous

SBRC Meeting Minutes — March 25, 2024



Meeting Adjourned at 7:17 pm.

Attachments:
None.

SBRC Meeting Minutes — March 25, 2024



